
 
Camrose Public Library – March 20 2024 Agenda 

Present:  

Regrets:  

1. Approval of the Agenda 

2. Board Feedback 

3. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes of February 21 2024 meeting 

b. Items for Information 

i. Correspondence 

a. Budget 2024 – Letter to Library Boards 

ii. Libraries in the News 

a. ‘We deserve better’: Demonstrators demand more funding, 

Sunday hours for Winnipeg libraries – CTV News 

b. Is book banning coming to Canada? Libraries, book stores, 

authors watching closely – Vancouver Sun 

c. How the Toronto library is recovering from a cyberattack, one 

book at a time – Global News 

d. Union serves strike notice for 5,000 Edmonton city workers, 680 

library staff 

e. Halton Hills library evolves into community hub since inception 

50 years ago – Halton Hills Today 

iii. Position Paper 

a. Statement in Response to Parental Rights Legislation – Library 

Association of Alberta 

c. Reports 

i. Director’s Report 

ii. Program Overview to February 29 2024 

iii. Program Report and Library Stats February 2024 

iv. 2023 PLSB Annual Survey Summary Report 

 

4. Items for Discussion and Decision 

a. Treasurer’s Report 



 
Camrose Public Library – March 20 2024 Agenda 

b. Battle River Community Foundation Presentation – BRCF Executive Director 

Bobbi Way 

 

5. In Camera Items for Discussion 

a. Plan of Service Committee 

i. Consultant Recommendation 

b. Amended Bylaws and New Policy – Review and Approval 

i. Camrose Public Library Bylaws (Amended) 

ii. Camrose Public Library Membership Fee Policy (New) 

c. Grant Received 

 

6. Items for Decision 

a. Plan of Service Committee 

i. Consultant Recommendation 

b. Amended Bylaws and New Policy – Review and Approval 

i. Camrose Public Library Bylaws (Amended) 

ii. Camrose Public Library Membership Fee Policy (New) 

 

Next regular Board meeting: April 17 2024, 5:00pm 



  
Camrose Public Library –February 20, 2024 Minutes 

 

Present:  Renee Greer (Chair), Alyssa Martin (Director), Cheryl Dezall, Peter Hamm, Jade 

Hulkovich, Joy-Anne Murphy (City of Camrose Council), Lucy Ernst, Margaret Holliston, 

Naomi Finseth, Vikki Williams  

Regrets: Don Simpson (Camrose County Council) 

 

Call to Order: Chair Renee Greer called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm 

1. Approval of the Agenda 

Motion 06/24 M/S/C – Cheryl Dezall/ Lucy Ernst: That the agenda be approved.  

2. Board Feedback – none. 
 

3. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes of January 17, 2024, meeting. 

Motion 07/24 M/S/C – Naomi Finseth/Joy-Anne Murphy: That the minutes of 

January 17, 2024, be approved as amended: 

• Board toured the downstairs (not upstairs) washrooms. 

• Item 4a: Renee Greer (not Finseth) nominated Margaret Holliston as Secretary 

• Item 4f: Last line should read “…review the matter as necessary” and not “at 

a subsequent meeting.” 

b. Items for Information:  Board members reviewed prior to the meeting. 

c. Reports:  Board members reviewed prior to the meeting. 

4. Items for Discussion and Decision  

a. Treasurer’s Report:  Vikki Williams reported $334,963.70 in the chequing account; a 

Visa #1 zero balance; $59.48 owing in VISA #2; $54,469.40 in GICs.  In January, 

money out (debited) was $28,789.22 and money in (credited) was $6,458.01. 

Motion 08/24 M/S/C – Peter Hamm/Margaret Holliston: That the Treasurer’s report 

be accepted as presented. 

b. Policy Committee Report:  The Committee met on February 1.  Alyssa had shared 

the Policy Revision Schedule, suggesting we finish the Program Policy (which we 

did on February 1), then review Governance Policy and Role of the Board Policy.  

At the board meeting it was suggested that the committee next review the 

Bylaws to ensure consistency with all policy (will likely need amendments), and 

then review Finance Policy along with Governance Policy, and eventually create 

a Board Manual.  These tasks will be completed over the next half year or so. 

 



  
Camrose Public Library –February 20, 2024 Minutes 

c. Plan of Service Committee Report: Alyssa has connected with the three ‘short-

listed’ consultants, who are willing to work with other consultants if the parameters 

are clearly outlined. Angela Kublik and Trina McCarrol have provided quotes; 

Rebecca Purc-Stephenson will provide one soon.  The decision will be made at 

the next committee meeting, after which the committee will report to the board. 

d. PLSB (Public Library Services Branch) Annual Survey and Report:  Members 

reviewed the report prior to the meeting. Alyssa provided a brief overview.   

 Motion 09/24 M/S/C – Cheryl Dezall/Peter Hamm: That the PLSB Annual Survey 

and Report be approved as presented. 

e. New Policy:  

i. Program Policy: The second draft was reviewed.  The new policy is intended 

to help CPL handle censorship challenges and provide clarity on how CPL 

should allocate funds for events and programs.  It is complex, seeking to 

balance parental (and patrons’) rights and responsibilities and the integrity of 

CPL values with freedom of expression.  After some discussion, the policy, 

which is modelled after CPL’s Collections policy, was accepted. 

Motion 10/24 M/S/C, with one abstention – Joy-Anne Murphy/Margaret 

Holliston: That the Program Policy be approved as presented. 

ii. Request for Reconsideration of Library Program Form 

Motion 11/24 M/S/C – Joy-Anne Murphy/Cheryl Dezall: That the Request for 

Reconsideration Form be approved as presented. 

Action: Peter Hamm confirmed his participation on the Policy Committee. 

Action:  Alyssa will check with Canadian Federation of Library Associations 

Intellectual Freedom Committee regarding this on-going hot-topic’ issue. 

f. Battle River Community Foundation Funding:  See Director’s Report.  Alyssa 

highlighted information and options for consideration.  CPL has recently been 

using flow-through funding (i.e. Irving Fund) for operations, which, although 

needed to balance budgets, is not advised since annual amounts vary. The 

same has been happening with GIC revenue. It is better to invest the GIC funds 

or use the GIC and/or BRCF funds for collection/program top-ups or special 

projects that don’t require sustainable operational funding.  Alyssa noted that 

CPL policy actually directs GIC funds to be deposited into reserves, but they have 

been used as operational funding for the past 3 years. 

Question:  Do we want to set-up a BRCF endowment fund? 

• Related Action: Alyssa will invite a BRCF representative to our March 

meeting. 

Other options:  1) Create an Ad Hoc Finance Committee to work on a Financial 

Strategy; 2) Reach out to several local Financial Advisors for initial advice. 



  
Camrose Public Library –February 20, 2024 Minutes 

• Related Action: Policy Committee will review Financial Policy and provide 

a better idea of which options to pursue; the BRCF representative will be 

helpful in that regard. 

g. Staff and Board Development: The board agreed to host intellectual freedom 

training with James L Turk (google his credentials; sounds amazing!) at an 

estimated cost of $1,400, which is covered in the Professional Development 

budget of $4,000. CPL may invite a few area libraries and/or local agencies to 

participate (for a fee to share costs).  Anticipated for May so CPL summer 

students can participate. 

Action:  Alyssa will follow-up. 

5. Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 6:32 pm 

Next regular Board meeting: March 20, 2024, 5:00 pm 





 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

https://vancouversun.com/entertainment/books/libraries-stores-authors-book-bans-canada 

 

https://vancouversun.com/entertainment/books/libraries-stores-authors-book-bans-canada


 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

https://globalnews.ca/news/10325539/toronto-library-cyberattack-recovery/ 

 

https://globalnews.ca/news/10325539/toronto-library-cyberattack-recovery/


 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/edmonton/edmonton-city-strike-vote-labour-action-1.7140013 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/edmonton/edmonton-city-strike-vote-labour-action-1.7140013






 

 

Statement in Response to Proposed “Parental Rights” Legislation  

Library Association of Alberta 
Approved February 2024 

 
The Library Association of Alberta upholds the universal principles of intellectual freedom as defined by 

the Universal Declaration of Human Rights. As library professionals, we are committed to free and 

equitable access to information for all Albertans, including children, and we oppose any efforts to 

suppress knowledge.  

On February 1, 2024, Alberta Premier Danielle Smith announced that her government will introduce 

legislation to restrict gender-affirming healthcare for youth and to require government approval of all 

third-party teaching materials on gender identity, sexual orientation, and sexuality in Alberta schools. 

This legislation aims to censor information on sexuality and LGBTQIA2+ perspectives and experiences, 

rendering educators unable to provide inclusive education on these essential topics.  It also renders 

school libraries unable to provide information and resources that reflect the diversity of Canadian and 

Albertan experiences. This legislation would deny Alberta’s youth access to information and knowledge 

crucial to their understanding of their world, their peers, and themselves.   

School library and classroom resources are evaluated and selected by trained educators and librarians 

within the context of established and researched guidelines. These guidelines uphold the universal 

principles of intellectual freedom as guaranteed to all Canadians, including children, in the Canadian 

Charter of Rights and Freedoms. Additional review and approval by the government is unnecessary, 

inefficient, and in violation of the principles of intellectual freedom that ensure our children have access 

to rich and diverse materials that offer them a full range of knowledge, ideas and opinions.  

The LAA pledges to join with library workers, educators, and provincial and federal library associations 

to oppose any legislation that would censor information resources, curriculum, or programs addressing 

sexuality, sexual orientation, gender identity or LGBTQIA2+ existences and experiences. We call on the 

provincial government and Premier Smith to uphold the values of intellectual freedom that are essential 

to a democratic society and renounce plans to introduce legislation that would embed censorship in 

Alberta’s classrooms and schools.  

 



 
 

Director’s Report  
March 13 2024 

Alyssa Martin 

 

Intellectual Freedom Talk 

For Freedom to Read week, I gave a talk about Intellectual Freedom, it’s 

intrinsic ties to democratic societies, and the threats it’s facing in our 

current technological and political climate. The event went well with ~19 

attendees and some good discussion. I intend to make alterations to this 

talk and take it to other organizations in the future. 
 

Fellowship of the Camrose Public Library 
CPL and the Fellowship hosted a joint open house to attract new members, and 

answer potential member’s questions. We had an amazing in-person turnout, 

with others saying that they are interested but couldn’t be there in person. It 

looks like the group will live to see another day, and Kalene and Sam (the 

current executive) are working to set up a new meeting to induct new members 

and a new executive. A CPL board representative will likely need to be chosen 

if everything goes well. 

 

New Copier 

The staff and community love the new copier and fax machine! I’ve received 

plenty of positive feedback about it, and a lot of gratitude. 

 

Intellectual Freedom Training 

We have received feedback from other library and media common 

coordinators that they are interested in joining us for our Intellectual Freedom 

training. I will begin the process of choosing a date and time in the near future. 

 

Board Orientation 

Board orientation with PLSB ran on March 6, and went well. Some highlights 

included discussion about who dictates the board’s code of ethics (the 

municipality or the library), how library bylaws get filed, the difference between 

the Friends responsibilities and the Board’s, and how our financial reviewer is 

chosen. 

 

Summer Students 

We are in the midst of hiring our 2024 Book Bike Pilots and Summer Programmers. 

The posting closes on the 18th, and can be found on our website. 

 



 
 

New Room 

CPL opened up our new room to the public this week. The Cave (the new 

downstairs office) now has a computer installed that can operate as both a 

staff computer, a public computer, or an exam computer depending on log-in 

permissions. This room is open to the public, and anyone can book this room for 

2 hours per day, free of charge. Bookings can only be made 7 days in advance 

to ensure that everyone has the chance to use the room, and to allow CPL to 

use the room for community partners as agreements are made. This room will be 

the office for the summer students from May-August, making it inaccessible to 

the public for those months. 

 

Some of the activities the public has asked to do over the past three years that 

will now be possible with this room: 

 

• Group projects 

• Study room 

• Room for tutor appointments 

• Room for online visitation 

• Room to participate in webinars or Zoom calls 

• Room for un-proctored exams and training 

• Virtual court attendance 

• Quiet reading room 

• Room for podcast recording 

• Prayer room 

 

This room also allows circulation staff to have a place to get some work done 

that requires vocal participation or uninterrupted focus, such as live webinars for 

professional development or writing procedure. 

 

As we make arrangements with local organizations, we hope to also use this 

room as a community office, where our patrons can connect with external 

services that are frequently sought out at the library. 

 

Our website will be updated soon with the new rooms and what services they 

can offer. 



Outreach Program Attendance

Deliveries to Care Facilites 18 139

German Circle Online 9 33

Ukulele Online 7 21

Mind Masters 2 484

Augustana Preview Days 1 40

37 717

In House Program Attendance

Spanish 8 63

Ukulele 7 61

Fibre Club 7 33

Drum Circle with CMHA 2 17

French (Wednesday) CANCELLED 4 4

French (Thursday) 9 23

Climate Café 2 11

Cricut Classes 4 22

How To: Canva 1 19

How To: Chat GPT 1 10

Intellectual Freedom & Libraries 1 18

Fellowship Open House 1 30

47 311

Total 84 1028

Camrose Public Library                                                                                                                    

Adult Programs                                                                                                                                

January 1 to February 29, 2024



Outreach Program Attendance

Read for 15 1 4167

Chuck Maclean Family workshops 2 32

Women's Shelter Family Literacy 2 12

Paw Café with CAARS 1 175

6 4386

In House Program Attendance

Snacks in the Stacks 42 902

Something Cool After School 36 288

Books & Bounces 8 137

Terrific Tales 8 127

Tech Help 17 34

Bed Time Stories 8 84

Crafternoon 7 57

Rainbow Club 2 5

Writing Club 9 3

Early Dismissal Matinee 2 134

Family Literacy Day with CFRC 1 25

Game Day CANCELLED 4 2

Anime Club CANCELLED 4 8

Leap Day 1 0

149 1806

Total 155 6192

Camrose Public Library                                                                                                                    

Family Programs                                                                                                                                

January 1 to February 29, 2024



Outreach Program Attendance

0 0

In House Program Attendance

0 0

Monthly Total 0 0

Camrose Public Library                                                                                                                    

Childrens Programs                                                                                                                                

January 1 to February 29, 2024



Outreach Program Attendance

0 0

In House Program Attendance

Golden Flames Teen D & D 8 79

Mario Cart Tourney 1 16

9 95

Total 9 95

Camrose Public Library                                                                                                                    

Teen Programs                                                                                                                                

January 1 to February 29, 2024



Outreach Programs 43 5103

In-house Programs 205 2212

YTD 248 7315

Submitted by Nicole Bannick

March 8 2024

Camrose Public Library                                                                                                                    

Total Programs                                                                                                                                

January 1 to February 29, 2024



1009

30
people attended an
open house and info
night hosted by the

Fellowship of Camrose
Public Library!

people accessed
programs that help

develop relationships,
end social isolation, and
make them feel welcome

in our library and our
community.

671

1 patron quote that
shows what we mean

to some people:

February 2024
Program and Library Statistics

Submitted by Nicole Kyle
March 13, 2023

People attended library
programs and special

events designed to
educate and promote a
love of lifelong learning.

“It's such a wonderful place
to bring my kids and spend

a quiet afternoon. I love that
I can also access books

from other parts of Alberta.”



We partnered with Camrose Animal Alliance
Rescue Society to provide and art station and
resources at their Pae Cafe fundraiser on
February 4 at the CRE. 150 people came to
craft, savour items from the cafe, and cuddle
adoptable animals! 

We read books about hair and haircuts at one
session of Terrific Tales and then followed up

with an activity that allowed the children to
practice their hairstyling skills by braiding and

cutting yarn hair that I sewed on to craft foam
heads. This activity helped the kids be creative

while also developing their fine motor skills..  

February Program Summary 
February was a busy month with ongoing programs and special
events that provided opportunities to build both traditional and
digital literacies, get creative, and connect with community. 

Our monthly “Half-Day Matinee” still
continues to grow; there were 72 people of

all ages this month! We started off with
pizza thanks to the sponsorship of Dominos

and our partnership with Camrose Family
Resource Centre, we made Shrek and

Donkey ears, and then had an interactive
screening of the Shrek film adaptation.

 Freedom to Read Week celebrated its
40th anniversary in Canada between
February 18-24. We honoured the
occasion with a “Blind Date with a
Banned Book” passive program, and
Alyssa hosted a presentation and
discussion about intellectual freedom in
libraries.





February 2024 Library Statistics
YTD daily visit averages (and hourly based on operational hours in brackets) 
               Mondays: 272 (avg of 30/hr)            Tuesdays: 342 (avg of 38/hr)
               Wednesdays: 329 (avg of 37/hr)       Thursdays: 341 (avg of 38/hr)
               Fridays: 318 (avg of 35/hr)               Saturdays: 223 (avg of 45/hr)
                                                    Sundays: 97 (avg of 24/hr)



 

 

  Camrose 

Public Library 

3,003 people have a 

card at our library 

We offered 916 in-

person programs 

The library added 2,915 

new items last year 
There were 7,680 

downloads of e-Content 

We answered 4,750 

reference questions 

And brought in 53,702 

items upon patron 

request 

The library had 2,604 

open hours in 2023! 

Bringing the total 

collection to 34,315 

Our service was delivered 

by 27 dedicated staff 

And our Wi-Fi had 

115,008 connections! 

0 mobile devices 

available for loan 

We lent our items to 

libraries outside of our 

system 23,891 times 

The library has 22 

public computers 

84,163 people walked 

through our doors last 

year 

In addition to 53,776 

website visits 

Contributing to a total 

of 153,766 checkouts! 

And 28 amazing 

volunteers 

And our meeting 

spaces were booked 45 

times 

67 virtual 

programs 

And 143 digital 

literacy 

programs 

22,832 people 

attended in 

total! 


